
AFSPC SECTION L & M CHECKLIST

Forward:  The provisions in FAR and the language in AFFARS 5315 provide a framework that should be followed so that the source selection process is consistent in application.  However, what is important, how important it is, what will be a discriminator and what is considered relevant will vary based on the requirement and the associated risks.  Section L & M must be developed with this in mind.  Another tool that you may want to access is the AFMC Section L & M Guides which may be used as a template to begin developing your Sections L & M.  

All the answers to the questions in this checklist that apply should be answered affirmatively.

Section L, Instructions to Offerors

General
____ (a) Have you developed Section L to request the minimum information required to evaluate proposals in accordance with Section M criteria? Will everything requested be used for evaluation?

____ (b) If oral presentations are to be used, is the process clear including when and 
where the oral presentations will take place, time limits, limits on written materials that can be presented, who can make the presentation, equipment that will be available for presentations and what formats are supported by equipment and permitted for review  (overheads, slides, PowerPoint etc.)?

____ (c) Is the organization of the proposal addressed, including what information is to be included in what section/volume?

____ (d) Are minimum page limits set forth for non-cost volumes, if applicable?

____ (e) Are page size and format limitations specified?  

____ (f) Have you avoided repeating information already contained in the FAR clauses and/or provisions (to include supplements) that are contained in the solicitation?  Note: In particular, review contract provision FAR 52.215-1, Instructions to Offerors- Competitive Acquisition, which already addresses much of the detail regarding the AF source selection process.

____ (g) Have you made sure that Section L does not repeat information in Section M?  Also, make sure the Section L language does not address how offerors will be evaluated (process to be used for evaluation belongs in Section M).

____ (h) For full trade-off source selection, each Factor and each Mission Capability subfactor in Section M, does Section L contain the specific, detailed information the offeror needs to submit so that the team can evaluate that factor or subfactor?

____ (i) Did you include language in Section L indicating to potential offerors that you plan to use commercial software programs to send source selection information electronically?  Consider language such as the following “To facilitate review and evaluation for this source selection the Government proposes to transmit data via commercial systems.  Distributed material will be identified as source selection sensitive and distribution strictly limited to appropriate personnel.  Should any contractor object to their proprietary information being shared between source selection evaluators and advisors via commercial e-mail as described above, please advise the Contracting Officer _____________ at _____________.”

Other specific aspects of Section L as it relates to past performance are included in the following section on the Past Performance Factor

Past Performance Factor 

____ (a) Does Section L request the offeror to explain why each past performance reference is relevant to the instant acquisition and, for source selections, how it is relevant to the mission capability subfactors?  Note: Do not limit offeror to a specific number of relevant contracts either as a minimum or a maximum. 
____ (b)  Does Section L specifically request that offerors include relevant past performance information pertaining to subcontractors, teaming partners, key personnel and predecessor companies?  Note: Do not limit offeror to a specific number of relevant contracts either as a minimum or a maximum.
____ (c) Does Section L ask the offerors to identify the proposed work effort for teaming partners, subs and key personnel to permit evaluators to appropriately attribute relevance to the past work in light of proposed roles on this instant acquisition? 
____ (d) Does the language in Section M make it clear that the purpose of the past performance evaluation is to assess the degree of confidence the Air Force has in the offeror’s ability to supply the specific products or services required in the acquisition?
____ (e) Have you clearly conveyed in Section M that past performance will be evaluated for recency, relevance, and quality of performance?  Have you identified any specific aspects of relevance that are of critical importance for the acquisition?  Have you clearly indicated that this will include evaluating past performance as it relates to the mission capability subfactors when a full trade-off source selection is contemplated?  (Past performance as it relates to specific subfactors under mission capability must be evaluated but past performance evaluation is comprehensive in nature and as such addresses the full scope of the requirement not just the mission capability subfactors.) 
____ (f) Does the language in Section M explain that the government may consider a variety of sources to obtain past performance and as such the review is not limited to reviewing contracts referenced by the contractor as provided in response to Section L?

____ (g) Did you address in Section M that evaluation of past performance will include how prime contractors have done in meeting small business subcontracting goals?

Past Performance Questionnaires

General: Developing meaningful questionnaires is a difficult task and responses to questionnaires have not been validated to serve as official records of performance.  The automated systems of PPIRS, ACASS and CCASS are official sources of information.  Always access the automated systems to determine the extent of past performance information available prior to determining if questionnaires are needed and note that commercial firms are under no obligation to complete questionnaires.  Do not duplicate information contained in automated systems in questionnaires.  Frequently questionnaires contain requests for factual data to assist in determination of relevance of past and present work - this kind of information can be obtained from the offeror and validated as necessary.  Lessons Learned frequently state that the responses were not meaningful and the effort and cost involved outweighed the benefits.  In short, survey forms and questionnaires should be the last option for collection of past performance information, not the first.  However, if written questionnaires are considered necessary consider the following:
____ (a) Does Section L state that respondents need not send questionnaires on projects for which past performance records already exist in the PPIRS/CCASS or ACASS systems?

____ b) Does Section L indicate that completed responses should be returned to the government by survey respondents rather than tasking the offerors to collect them?  Has a government point of contact and government fax number been provided for respondents?  

____ (c) Have you made certain the language in Section L does not require the offerors to follow-up on the respondents to see if surveys have been sent in? 

____ (d) Have you used the definitions for accessing past performance found in the DoD past performance guide for completed past performance?  (Do not use the definitions in AFFARS 5315 for assigning confidence ratings in questionnaires). 
Section M, Evaluation Criteria

General 

____ (a) Have you made sure that Section M does not repeat information in Section L?  Specifically, make sure Section M language does not give instructions to offerors on what to provide as part of their proposal which belongs in Section L.  In addition, make sure Section M does not evaluate the format of data submitted or read as a checklist of documents.  (Sentences such as “Did the offeror provide a staffing plan” are not appropriate criteria for Section M as they do not evaluate the quality and content of meeting a threshold requirement for color and risk.) 

____ (b) For full trade-off source selections, is the criteria in Section M identical to the criteria included and approved in the Source Selection Plan?  Note: For PPT and LPTA a source selection plan is not required.
____ (c) For full trade-off source selections, are all factors and significant subfactors that will affect contract award and their relative importance stated clearly in the solicitation and is the relative importance of the factors addressed per FAR 15.304(d)?  

____ (d) For full trade-off source selections, is the relative importance of cost to all other non-cost factors combined stated (significantly more important, equal, or significantly less important) as required by FAR 15.304(e)?  

____ (e) For PPTs, have you clearly expressed that the government will trade-off price and past performance and may select a contractor with a higher price that provides a higher confidence rating in the area of past performance?

____ (f) If FAR 19.1202 applies is evaluation of the extent of SDB participation included as a criteria in full source selections and PPTs?  (FAR 19.1202-2 states that the extent of participation of SDB concerns in performance of the contract in the authorized NAICS Industry Subsector shall be evaluated in competitive, negotiated acquisitions expected to exceed $500,000 ($1,000,000 for construction)) 

____ (g) For full trade-off source selections, are mission capability subfactors limited to only those areas that will truly be discriminators between offerors and are not criteria that all offerors are expected to meet? (AFFARS 5315.304(b))

____ (h) Is it clear how the proposals will be evaluated and the rating determined (e.g.  Pass/Fail, color rating, risk rating, confidence assessment)?

____ (i) Have you made sure that Section M references the definitions and ratings used in AFFARS 5315 for evaluation rather than duplicating the text found in the AFFARS? 

____ (j) As in Section L, have you avoided repeating information already contained in the FAR clauses and/or provisions (to include supplements) that are contained in the solicitation?  
PPT with Technical Acceptability Requirement
____ Can the criteria selected be substantively evaluated on a pass/fail basis? (For example if the criteria states  “Does the offeror provide a manning approach to handle surge requirements?” then any approach will pass; however, if the requirement is to “Provide a plan that ensures surge requirements of up to 200% will be meet within 3 minutes” this specific criteria will not be met by merely submitting any plan – a plan alone will not guarantee a passing rating.)

Assessing Mission Capability Factor (full source selection)

____ (a)  Does the relative importance of Factors and Subfactors and the selection of Subfactors reflect the risks identified through detailed risk analysis during the acquisition planning phase?

____ (b) Is each Mission Capability Subfactor clear and specific about what the offeror must demonstrate in its proposal to meet the threshold requirement (criteria to reach a “green”)?  Can the subfactor clearly even be exceeded, e.g. could it result in other than red/green?
____ (c) Are the evaluation criteria performance based, focusing on the desired outcomes we want, not the processes used to get there  (e.g. meeting an operational availability level for a system rather than analysis of resumes for personnel operating a radar system). 

____ (d) Does the solicitation explain how proposals that exceed the threshold requirement will be considered in accordance with the alternatives presented in AFFARS 5315.101-1 and Part 15 of SAF/AQC Contracting Toolkit Web Site?  

____ (e) Have thresholds have been selected with the understanding that the government would be willing to pay more money for proposals that exceed the threshold? 

____ (f) Have you avoided selection of subfactors that deal with management approaches?  (The offeror’s management approach is not an evaluation criteria.  Management approach is not performance based; it is part of the offeror’s approach to meeting the other performance-based criteria.  The success of failure of an offeror’s approach in managing its workforce is reflected in success or failure in past and present work.)

____ (g) Does the criteria selected require offerors to demonstrate something versus only requiring the offerors to submit something?  (E.g. if the subfactor is “the offeror presented an approach to maintenance of equipment,” then any approach would meet the criteria.  However, if the criteria requires  “the offeror demonstrates a maintenance process that ensures all work orders are accomplished on schedule as identified in SDS,” only those offerors with an approach that can provide maintenance in the timeframe specified will meet the criteria.)

____ (h) Do subfactors selected reflect significant end results of performance rather than evaluation of a interim measure of success?  (e.g. Evaluate the performance of an engine in generating power rather than the performance of valves, pistons, carburetor, gear shaft etc that are only components of the engine)

____ (i) Have you identified evaluation of subcontracting as a separate mission capability subfactor rather than including it under another subfactor?

____ (j) Have you limited mission capability subfactors to a total of six and avoided listing additional areas for evaluation under these subfactors (The use of elements is highly discouraged.  The selection of 6 as a total is specifically designed to focus upon those areas that will really serve as discriminators)? 

Cost/Price


____ (a) Is cost/price evaluation limited to reasonableness and realism and is the application of most probable cost addressed (when applicable)? (FAR 15.404-1) 

____ (b) Did you ensure evaluation of price /cost does not require submission of cost and pricing or other than cost or pricing data under Section L  (FAR 15.403-1)?

____ (c) Is phase-in being include in bottom line price comparison (unless acquisition strategy approach is to exclude phase-in from pricing evaluation) for evaluation of realism and overall reasonableness?

____ (d) Is the approach for evaluation of pre-determined cost for Contract Line Item Numbers (CLINs) such as materials or travel reimbursement addressed?

____ (e) For cost reimbursable areas such as materials and travel, is it clear which aspects of performance are to be considered under these CLINs and which aspects of performance (that may also include use of materials or travel) are to be priced by the offerors under other contract line items? 
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